LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING PACKET

Tuesday, November 12, 2013

Mayor Bob Keith

Commissioner John Moore Commissioner Mary Ann Silvey

Commissioner Diane Barrett Commissioner Bob Cameron




10.

11;

REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL

November 12, 2013
7.00 p.m.
Lake Lure Municipal Center

AGENDA
Call to Order Mayor
Bob Keith
Invocation Attorney
Chris Callahan
Pledge of Allegiance
Approve the Agenda Council

Public Hearing — Proposed Ordinance No. 13-11-12 Concerning the Definitions
and Regulations Related to Portable Signs and Sandwich Board Signs

Consider Adoption of Ordinance No. 13-11-12 Concerning the Definitions and
Regulations Related to Portable Signs and Sandwich Board Signs

Public Hearing — Proposed Ordinance No. 13-11-12A Concerning the Lake
Structure Appeals Board; Modifying the Procedures for Processing Matters to be
Heard by the Board.

Consider Adoption of Ordinance No. 13-11-12A Concerning the Lake Structure
Appeals Board; Modifying the Procedures for Processing Matters to be Heard by
the Board.

Public Forum: The public is invited to speak on any non-agenda and/or consent
agenda topics. Comments should be limited (o less than five minutes.

Staff Reports

Council Liaison Reports & Comments




Page 2 — Town Council Meeting Agenda
November 12,2013

12.

13.

14.

15.

Consent Agenda:

a. Approve Minutes of the October 8, 2013 (Regular Meeting )

b. Accept a Memorandum from the Zoning and Planning Board Concerning
Review of a Proposed Concession Agreement with Lake Lure Tours
Submitted by the Board’s Chairman Thomas McKay

Unfinished Business

a. Other Unfinished Business

New Business:

a. Consider Approval of a Request From the 1927 Lake Lure Inn and Spa
Concerning Gazebo Bookings for 2015

b. Consider Extending an Agreement with the North Carolina State
Employees Credit Union to Lease ATM Space

Adjournment



Agenda Items: 5 &6



e Town of

= est. 1927 Noxth Carolina

Community Development Department

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor & Town Council
FROM: Shannon Baldwin, Community Development Direct /-
CC: Chris Braund, Town Manager

SUBJECT: Becoming More Business Friendly / Sandwich Board Signs

DATE: November 4, 2013

Attached is the proposed ordinance in keeping with the “Becoming More Business Friendly”
initiative launched by Town Council now being jointly considered by both the Zoning and
Planning Board and the Hickory Nut Gorge Chamber of Commerce.

At its October 15, 2013 meeting, the Zoning and Planning Board discussed this ordinance which
was previously reviewed by Town Council. This ordinance, if passed by Council, will permit
sandwich board signs for business establishments in the Town of Lake Lure like Chimney Rock
Village, City of Brevard, and other municipalities striving to be business friendly.

The Zoning and Planning Board voted to approve and send the attached ordinance to the Town
Council for consideration. All voted in favor. This ordinance is neither consistent nor

inconsistent with the 2007-2027 Comprehensive Plan,

Recommended Motion: I move Town Council adopt Ordinance No. 13-11-12 and find that said
Ordinance is neither consistent nor inconsistent with the 2007-2027 Comprehensive Plan.

P. O. Box 255, Lake Lure, NC 28746 < Phone 828-625-9983, Ext. 129, Fax 828-625-8371



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that at 7:00 p.m., on 12 November 2013, at the Lake Lure Municipal
Center, 2948 Memorial Highway, Lake Lure, North Carolina, the Lake Lure Town Council will
hold a public hearing with regard to the following matter:

Ordinance #13-11-12: An Ordinance concerning the definitions and regulations
related to portable signs and sandwich board signs.

The public is advised that it has the right to appear at said public hearing and present information
with regard to this matter. Copies of the proposed ordinance are available for public inspection
at the Lake Lure Municipal Center, 2948 Memorial Hwy, 8:00 am. until 5:00 p.m., Monday
through Fridays, holidays excepted.



ORDINANCE NUMBER 13-11-12

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING REGULATIONS CONCERNING THE
DEFINITIONS AND REGULATIONS RELATED TO PORTABLE SIGNS AND
SANDWICH BOARD SIGNS

WHEREAS, the Zoning and Planning Board has recommended modifications to Zoning and
Regulations of the Town of Lake Lure as noted in the title of this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the proposed ordinance is consistent with the 2007-
2027 Town of Lake Lure Comprehensive Plan, particularly with regard to Element 2.0 Economic
Development, which states, “Though residential development generates the largest percent of the
revenues that comprise the annual budget, the town could benefit from the revenues generated
from sales tax, property tax, and reduced infrastructure costs associated with commercial
development.” Assisting small business in their effort to successfully communicate with their
customers will benefit the town by ensuring sales taxes and property taxes are sustained over the
long run; and

WHERFEAS, the Lake Lure Town Council, after due notice, conducted a public hearing on the
12" day of November, 2013, upon the question of amending the Zoning Regulations in this
respect.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF LAKE LURE, NORTH CAROLINA, MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION AND
WITH A MAJORITY OF THE COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTING IN THE
AFFIRMATIVE:

SECTION ONE. Section 92.147 of the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Lake Lure, entitled
“Definitions”, is hereby amended to revise the definition of “Portable Sign” and “Sidewalk or
Sandwich Sign” as follows:

[ADDITIONS TO TEXT ARE UNDERLINED; DELETIONS ARE STRUCK-THROUGH. ]

Portable Sign: A sign generally constructed to be easily movable without a permanent
attachment to the ground and which may or may not be equipped with wheels. Such
signs may be designed for changeable messages. This term does not apply to sidewalk or
sandwich board signs permitted in § 92.157.

Sidewalk or Sandwich Board Sign: A An A-frame, inverted V-shape, or similarly shaped
moveable sign not secured or attached to the ground or any building or structure. Itis
portable and usually double-sided.




Ordinance No. 13-11-12
November 12, 2013
Page 2

SECTION TWO. Section 92.156 of the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Lake Lure, entitled
«QIGNS PROHIBITED?”, is hereby amended as follows:

[ADDIT]ONS TO TEXT ARE UNDERLINED; DELETIONS ARE STRUCK-THROUGH ]
The following are prohibited within the jurisdiction of this chapter:
(C) Sidewalle-sandwich;and pPortable signs except for special events.

SECTION THREE. Paragraph (B) of Section 92.157 of the Zoning Regulations of the Town of
Lake Lure, entitled “SIGNS PERMITTED AND REGULATED?, is hereby amended as follows:

[ADDITIONS TO TEXT ARE UNDERLINED; DELETIONS ARE STRUCK-THREHGH ]
(B) Business, commercial and industrial districts.

(9) Commercial districts may be permitted a single sandwich board sign to be placed
adjacent to a sidewalk, the front of the individual business, or in the parking arca providing such
sign is located on the business establishment’s property and does not pose a safety hazard,
Business establishments located in the Arcade may also be permitted to place one such sign in
front of their business under the breezeway on the walkway providing such location does not
posc a safety hazard to pedestrians. This sign shall not exceed four feet in height or eight square
feet in area per sign face. The sign must be removed at the end of each day when the business
closes. Said signs may include artwork depicting the products and services available from the

business. changeable copy, and shall be exempt from the permit requirements of this chapter.

SECTION FOUR. Any person violating the provisions of this ordinance shall be subject fo the
penalties set forth in Section 92.999 of the Zoning Regulations.

SECTION FIVE. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION SIX. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this
ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed severable and such holding shall not affect the validity
of the remaining portions hereof.

SECTION SEVEN. The enactment of this ordinance shall in no way affect the running of any
amortization provisions or enforcement actions, ot otherwise cure any existing zoning violations.




Ordinance No. 13-11-12
November 12, 2013
Page 3

SECTION EIGHT. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its
adoption.

Enacted this 12™ day of November, 2013.

Bob Keith, Mayor

ATTEST:

Andi Calvert , Town Clerk

Approved as to form:

Chris Callahan, Town Attorney



Agenda Items: 7 & 8




B Town of

wee.

est, 1927 North Carolina

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor & Town Council
FROM: Sheila Spicer, Zoning Administrator/Code Enforcement Officer %
DATE: October 28, 2013

SUBJECT: Ordinance Number 13-11-12A Lake Structure Appeals Board Procedures

As you recall, the North Carolina General Statute provisions regarding boards of adjustment
were recently amended. These changes necessitated amendments to the Town of Lake Lure
Zoning Regulations regarding procedures for the Lake Lure Board of Adjustment, since the
Town’s regulations were no longer consistent with all of the state requirements. Town Council
adopted those amendments at their October 8, 2013.

The members of the Board of Adjustment (BOA) also serve as the Lake Structure Appeals Board
(LSAB). The provisions in the Lake Structures Regulations pertaining to the LSAB have
historically mirrored as close as possible the provisions in the Zoning Regulations for the BOA,
even though consistency with the state requirements is not mandatory as it is for the BOA. The
Town can have standards in the Lake Structures Regulations that are either more or less stringent
than those that are in the Zoning Regulations but has attempted to maintain a uniform approach
for both boards in order to avoid confusion as the Board members switch from a BOA meeting to
a LSAB meeting. :

Tn keeping with the attempt to have uniform procedures for both boards, staff has recommended
amendments to the Lake Structures Regulations pertaining to LSAB procedures that is
fundamentally the same as the Zoning Regulations pertaining to BOA procedures with one
exception. Stephen Webber, chairman of both boards, recommends that a supermajority vote still
be required to overturn the decision of the Lake Structures Administrator, while there is now
only a simple majority vote required to overturn the decision of the Zoning Administrator.
Chairman Webber suggested this due to the fact that decisions of the Lake Structures
Administrator involve issues pertaining to Town owned property, and the simple majority rule
should only apply to Town Council in the event the LSAB’s decision is appealed to them. The
supermajority requirement is found in Section 94.16 (H)(2) of the Regulations on page 6 of the
proposed ordinance.

The Lake Advisory Board unanimously recommended approval of Ordinance Number 13-11-
12A at their October 7, 2013 meeting.

P. O. Box 255, Lake Lure, NC 28746 + Phone 828-625-9983, Ext. 129, Fax 828-625-8371 l 0




NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that at 7:00 p.m., on 12 November 2013, at the Lake Lure Municipal
Center, 2948 Memorial Highway, Lake Lure, North Carolina, the Lake Lure Town Council will
hold a public hearing with regard to the following matter:

Ordinance #13-11-12A: An ordinance concerning the Lake Structure Appeals Board; modifying
the procedures for processing matters to be heard by the board.

The public is advised that it has the right to appear at said public hearing and present information
with regard to this matter. Copies of the proposed ordinance are available for public inspection
at the Lake Lure Municipal Center, 2948 Memorial Hwy, 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., Monday
through Fridays, holidays excepted.



ORDINANCE NUMBER 13-11-12A

AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING THE LAKE STRUCTURE APPEALS BOARI);
MODIFYING THE PROCEDURES FOR PROCESSING MATTERS TO BE HEARD BY
THE BOARD

WHEREAS, the Town of Lake Lure Lake Advisory Board has recommended modifications to
Chapter 94, concerning the procedures for processing matters to be heard by the Board; and

WHEREAS, the Lake Lure Town Council, after due notice, conducted a public hearing on the
12" day of November, 2013, upon the question of amending the Lake Structure Regulations in
this respect.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF LAKE LURE, NORTH CAROLINA, MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION AND
WITH A MAJORITY OF THE COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTING IN THE
AFFIRMATIVE:

SECTION ONE. Sections 94.16, et seq., of the Lake Structures Regulations of the Town of
Lake Lure, concerning the Lake Structure Appeals Board, are hereby amended as follows:

§ 94.16 LAKE STRUCTURE APPEALS BOARD

(A) Membership. The Lake Structure Appeals Board shall consist of five regular and three
alternate members to be appointed by the Town Council. Members of the Board shall serve a
term of three years, provided that terms of office may be adjusted at the time of appointment
in order that terms are staggered. In filling vacancies created by resignation or other causes, a
new member may be appointed to fill the unexpired term of the member so vacating. Each
alternate member while attending any regular or special meeting of the Board and serving in
the absence of any regular members shall have and may exercise all the powers and duties of a
regular member. Members shall serve without pay but may be reimbursed for any expenses
incurred while representing the Lake Structure Appeals Board.

(B) Rules of Conduct. Board members shall comply with the following rules of conduct.
Members may be removed by the Town Council for cause, including violation of the rules
stated below. (Amended 5-12-09)

(1) Faithful attendance at meetings of the Board and conscientious performance of the
duties required of members of the Board shall be considered a prerequisite to continuing
membership on the Board.




Ordinance No. 13-11-12A
November 12, 2013

Page 2

©)

2)

€)

(4)

&)

(6)

N Roascrd-member-g all talra nnrt 1n-the heorno concidaration—or daoterminatiaon af ansy
ANO-EHORFGTEINOCTH- bt R U o T Tie T Ioat i S, constgeration—oroorirrmatroT—oTall y
' ' .
onoes 11 1171ﬂ1f'| A 10 apraniin 1‘7 o ol ‘ﬁﬂoﬂf\“ﬂ ]‘f 1"+ﬂ"'ﬂf‘+ﬂf‘ f\ D{\ﬂf‘f] mnm]‘\av C‘]’\ﬂ]] .I’\ﬂ‘It,'.l n
caseH- Wt To oy Ut HHAR O ROTY 1o rcotod Ao O o ToCr i iy v U
fFrancial ntarect 1pn—a ecfse- Y& Aamician an tha cncea uoll-ecance hivy o hic cnrmopceeto
Huamet i Here STt tdac— vy ol U Lo T UL R Hhe—-Cas5e-Whr-CaustU U i Iplitiae v
cvaeriencea-direct financial henefli-or 1nce arardll-eanae-a hacinsoo 1n which - he or his
cxpehontotadrroen Haancial-PeRCHHOr3OS5 ol hIT CauoT U HIIboy H—w i1 Or IS
ciAlee alrna anss dnfaract o exnerience—m Airont 1 anafit -or loas A _Bao
O C— 0wy TDoy 0T HCE ot to 745 SAS B AT A 2 A CHOT T O 1005y x—Doara

B

]

o]

M
M.
. E;_.
v

Lrac o marmher o
TV O T TS

ﬁmedi&te-famﬂ%&%pafelweﬁse—ef—ehﬂé)- A board member shall not participate in
or vote on any quasi-judicial matter in a manner that would violate affected persons’
constitutional rights to an impartial decision, Impermissible conflicts include, but are
not limited to, a member having a fixed opinion prior to hearing the matter that is not
susceptible to change, undisclosed ex patte communications, a close familial, business,
or other associational relationship with an affected person, or a financial interest in the
outcome of the matter.

s
]
g
L
=
&
q
s
o
P
3
=
q
o
q

o

No Board member shall discuss any case with any parties thereto prior to the publie
hearing on that case; provided, however, that members may receive and/or seek
information pertaining to the case from the Lake Structure Administrator, e any other
member of the Board, its-seeretary or the clerk prior to the hearing.

Members of the Board shall not express individual opinions on the proper judgment of
any case prior to its determination on that case.

Members of the Board shall give notice to the Chair at least 48 hours prior to the hearing
of any potential conflict of interest which he has in a particular case before the Board.

No Board member shall vote on any matter that decides an application or appeal unless
he has attended the publie hearing on that application or appeal.

General Proceedings. The Board shall annually elect a Chair and a Vice Chair from among
its regular members. A seeretary clerk shall be provided by the Town; however, when
necessary, the Chair shall appoint a seeretary clerk, who may be an employee of the town, a
municipal officer, or a member of the Lake Structure Appeals Board. The Chair, or inhis
absence-the Viee-Cheir any member acting as chair, and the clerk, may administer oaths. and

_ The chair, or any member acting as the chair, may

subpoena witnesses and compel the production of evidence. To request issuance of a

subpoena, persons with standing under N.C.G.S. 160A-393(d) may make a written request to

the chair explaining why it is necessary for certain witnesses or evidence to be compelled.
The chair shall issue requested subpoenas he or she determines to be relevant, reasonable in

nature and scope, and not oppressive. The chair shall rule on any motion to guash or modify a
subpoena. Decisions regarding subpoenas made by the chair may be appealed to the full Lake

Structure Appeals Board. The Board shall keep minutes of its proceedings, including the

13




Ordinance No. 13-11-12A
November 12, 2013

Page 3

names of members present and absent, a record of the vote on every question, or abstention
from voting, if any, together with records of its examinations and other official actions.

(D) Meetings. The Board shall hold regular monthly meetings at a specified time and place.
Special meetings of the Board may be called at any time by the Chair or by request of three or
more members of the Board. At least 48 hours written notice of the time and place of
meetings shall be given, by the Chair, to each member of the Board. All Board meetings are
to be held in accordance with G.S. Ch. 143, Art. 33C, commonly referred to as the Open
Meetings Act.

¢y

@

(3)

Cancellation of Meetings. Whenever there are no appeals, applications for-eenditienal
uses or variances, ot other business for the Board, or whenever so many members notify
the seeretary clerk of inability to attend that a quorum will not be available, the Chair
may dispense with a meeting by giving written or oral notice to all members.

Quorum. A quorum shall consist of three members of the Board, but the Board shall not
pass upon any questions relating to an appeal from a decision or determination of the
Lake Structure Administrator, or an application for a variance or conditional-use-pesmit
decktop accessory structure when there are less than four members present.

Voting. All regular members may vole on any issue unless they have disqualified
themselves for one or more of the reasons listed in § 94.16(B)(2), above. The required
vote to decide appeals and applications shall be as provided in § 94.16(H) and shall not
be reduced by any disqualification. In all other matters the vote of a majority of the
members present and voting shall decide issues before the Board.

(E) Powers and Duties. The powers and duties of the Lake Structure Appeals Board shall be as
follows: (Amended 5-12-09)

(1)

2)

Administrative Appeals. To hear and decide appeals from any decision or determination
made by the Lake Structure Administrator in the enforcement of this Chapter.

Variances. Upon application, the Lake Structure Appeals Board may authorize in
specific cases such variance from the terms of this chapter as will not be contrary to the
public interest where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions
of this chapter will, in an individual case, result in practical difficulty or unnecessary
hardship. The variance may be permitted as long as the spirit of the chapter shall be
observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done. The Lake
Structure Appeals Board shall not have authority to grant a variance when to do so
would permit a use of land, building or structure which is not permitted within the
applicable zoning district.

14




Ordinance No. 13-11-12A
November 12, 2013

Page 4

In judging an application for a variance, the Lake Structure Appeals Board shall be
guided by the following:

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(c)
(f)

(2)

There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular
piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography that are not
applicable to other lands or structures in the same district.

Granting the variance requested will not confer upon the applicant any special
privileges that are denied to other residents of the district in which the property is
located.

A literal interpretation of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other residents of the district in which
the property is located.

The requested variance will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of this
chapter and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or to the general welfare.

The special circumstances are not the result of the actions of the applicant.

The variance is the minimum that—will-makepessible—thereasonable—use—of
necessary for the proposed the land, building or structure.

A nonconforming use of neighboring land, structures or buildings in the same
district, and permitted uses of land, structures or buildings in other districts, will
not be considered grounds for the issuance of a variance.

In granting any variance, the Lake Structure Appeals Board may prescribe
appropriate conditions and safeguards in conformity with this chapter. Violation
of such conditions and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under which the
variance is granted, shall be deemed a violation of this chapter and punishable
under § 94.999.

(3) Other Matters. The Board shall hear any other matters specified in this Chapter.

(F) Procedure for Filing Appeals and Applications. No appeal shall be heard by the Board
unless written notice thereof is filed within 30 days after the interested party or parties receive
the decision or determination by the Lake Structure Administrator. Applications for variances
or for other matters governed by this Chapter may be filed at any time. Both appeals and
applications shall be filed with the Lake Structure Administrator, who shall act as clerk for the
Board in receiving this notice. All appeals and applications shall be made upon the form
specified for that purpose, and all information required on the form shall be complete before

4



(@)

Ordinance No. 13-11-12A

November 12, 2013

Page 5

an appeal or application shall be considered as having been filed. Once appeals and
applications have been filed with the Lake Structure Administrator, the Lake Structure
Administrator shall notify the Chair of the Board that such appeals or applications have been
received. (Amended 5-12-069)

Hearings. Hearings before the Board shall be governed by the provisions contained herein.
(Amended 5-12-09)

(M

@

3)

Time. After receipt of notice of an appeal or a variance, the Beard Chair shall schedule a
time for a hearing which shall be within 41 days from the filing of such notice of appeal
or application.

A A
- ¥ )

Notice of Hearing.

the-hearing: Notice of hearings conducted pursuant to this section shall be mailed to the
person or entity whose appeal or application is the subject of the hearing, to the owner of

the owners of all parcels of land abutting the parcel of land that is the subject of the
hearing; and to any other persons entitled to receive notice as provided by these
regulations. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the Town may rely on the
Rutherford County tax listing to determine owners of property entitled to mailed notice.
The notice must be deposited in the mail at least 10 days, but not more than 25 days,

on an adjacent street or highway right-of-way,

Conduct of Hearing. Any party may appear in person or by agent or by attorney at the
hearing. The order of business for the hearing shall be as follows:

(a)  The Chair, or such person as he shall direct, shall give a preliminary statement of
the case;

(b)  The applicant shall present the argument in support of his appeal or application;

(c) Persons supporting or opposed to the appeal or application shall present thetr
arguments for or against the application or appeal;

(d)  Both sides will be permitted to present rebuttals to opposing testimony;

|6



Ordinance No. 13-11-12A
November 12, 2013
Page 6
(e)  Wilnesses may be called and factual evidence may be submitted, but the Board
shall not be limited to consideration of only such evidence as would be admissible
in a court of law. The Board may view the premises before arriving at a decision.

All witnesses before the Board shall be placed under oath and&:ay—eppesmg—p&ﬂy
may-cross—examinethem: Aftorneys representing any party may cross examine

any witness.

(H) Decisions. A decision by the Board shall be made within 35 days from the date of hearing.
The 35-day period shall begin on the date the publie hearing ends. (Amended 5-12-09)

(1)

gfaﬂ%mg—ef—a—vaﬂaﬂe% The de01510n shall be reduced to wntmg and reﬂect the Board’

determination of contested facts, if any, and their application to applicable standards.
The written decision shall be signed by the chair or other duly authorized member of the
Board. The decision of the Board shall be effective upon filing such decision with the
clerk to the Board. The clerk shall see that the decision is delivered by personal
delivery, electronic mail, or by first-class mail to the applicant, property owner, any
entity pranted party status at the hearing, and to any person who has submitted a written
request for a copy prior to the date the decision becomes effective, and shall certify that
proper notice has been made,

(2) Voting. The concurring vote of four-fifths of the members of the Board entitled to vote
on a matter shall be necessary to reverse any decision or determination of the Lake
Structure Administrator, or to grant a variance or to approve any other request under this
Chapter,

(3) Public record of decisions. The decisions of the Board, as filed in its minutes, shall be a
public record, available for inspection at all reasonable times.

(I)  Appeals of Decisions of the Board. Decisions of the Lake Structure Appeals Board shall be
final unless appealed by the applicant or an affected property owner to the Town Council

6

I




)

Ordinance No. 13-11-12A

November 12, 2013

Page 7
within 30 days of such decision. Council shall hold a hearing on the record within 45 days of
the appeal, and Council’s decision shall be final. (Amended 5-12-09)

Fees for Applications and Appeals. The fee for an application for a variance or other matter
regulated by this Chapter, or for an administrative appeal shall be determined by resolution of
the Town Council and shall be payable to the Town, (Amended 5-12-09)

[ ADDITIONS TO TEXT ARE UNDERLINED; DELETIONS ARE STRUCK-FHROUGH |

SECTION TWO. In administering this Ordinance, the Town shall have all the remedies and
enforcement powers contained in §94.99 of the Lake Structures Regulations, as supplemented
herein, and as provided by the General Statutes.

SECTION THREE. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION FOUR. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of
this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed severable and such holding shall not affect the validity
of the remaining portions hereof.

SECTION FIVE. The enactment of this ordinance shall in no way affect the running of any
amortization provisions or enforcement actions, or otherwise cure any existing violations.

SECTION SIX. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its enactment.

Adopted this day of , 2013.

Bob Keith, Mayor

ATTEST:

Andi Calvert , Town Clerk

Approved as to content & form:

Chris Callahan
Town Attorney

['8




Agenda Item: 12a

19



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL
HELD TUESDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2013, 7:00 P.M. AT THE LAKE LURE MUNICIPAL
CENTER

PRESENT: Mayor Pro Tem John W. Moore
Commissioner Mary Ann Silvey
Commissioner Bob Cameron
Commissioner Diane Barrett

Christopher Braund, Town Manager
J. Christopher Callahan, Town Attorney

ABSENT: Mayor Bob Keith

[ CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Pro Tem John Moore called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATION

Attorney Chris Callahan gave the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Council members led the pledge of allegiance.

[ APPROVE THE AGENDA B

Commissioner Bob Cameron made a motion to approve the agenda as presented
Commissioner Diane Barrett seconded the motion and the vote of approval was unanimous.

20



Page 2- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

PUBLIC HEARING PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 13-10-08: AN ORDINANCE
CONCERNING THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT; MODIFYING THE PROCEDURES
FOR PROCESSING MATTERS TO BE HEARD BY THE BOARD, AND MODIFYING

THE STANDARDS FOR GRANTING VARIANCES

Mayor Pro Tem John Moore opened the public hearing for proposed Ordinance No. 13-
10-08 concerning the board of adjustment; modifying the procedures for processing matters to be
heard by the board, and modifying the standards for granting variances

No one requested to speak during the public hearing.

CONSIDER ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 13-10-08: AN ORDINANCE
CONCERNING THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT; MODIFYING THE PROCEDURES
FOR PROCESSING MATTERS TO BE HEARD BY THE BOARD, AND MODIFYING

THE STANDARDS FOR GRANTING VARIANCES

Public notices were duly published in the Daily Courier newspaper.

Community Development Director Shannon Baldwin and Board of Adjustment Chairman
Stephen Webber gave a brief overview of proposed Ordinance No. 13-10-08 and explained that
Board of Adjustment procedure is mandated by the state.

After discussion, Commissioner Bob Cameron made the motion to adopt Ordinance No.
13-10-08 concerning the board of adjustment; modifying the procedures for processing matters
to be heard by the board, and modifying the standards for granting variances as presented.
Commissioner Mary Ann Silvey seconded the motion and the vote of approval was unanimous.

ORDINANCE NUMBER 13-10-08

AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT; MODIFYING
THE PROCEDURES IFOR PROCESSING MATTERS TO BE HEARD BY THE BOARD;
MODIFYING THE STANDARDS FOR GRANTING VARIANCES

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. § 160A-388 authorizes municipalities to establish boards of adjustment
to hear and decide requests for variances and conditional use permits and appeals of decisions of
administrative officials; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Lake Lure have established a board of
adjustment for the purposes enumerated in N.C.G.S. § 160A-388; and

2\



Page 3- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

WHEREAS, Session Law 2013-126 has modified the procedures by which boards of adjustment
function, as well as the standards for deciding requests for variances; and

WHEREAS, Town Council finds that this Ordinance is neither consistent nor inconsistent with
the 2007-2027 Town of Lake Lure Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, Town Council further finds that enactment of this Ordinance is reasonable and in
the public interest in that it enacts modifications to the procedures and standards for boards of
adjustment required by the North Carolina General Assembly; and

WHEREAS, the Lake Lure Town Council, after due notice, conducted a public hearing on
October 10, 2013 upon the question of amending the Zoning Regulations in this respect.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN
OF LAKE LURE, NORTH CAROLINA, MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION AND
WITH A MAJORITY OF THE COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTING IN THE
AFFIRMATIVE:

SECTION ONE. This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the grants of authority contained in
Section 160A-381 of the North Carolina General Statutes and North Carolina Session Law 2013~
126.

SECTION TWO. Sections 92.080, et seq., of the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Lake
Lure, concerning the Board of Adjustment, are hereby amended as follows:

§ 92.080 ESTABLISHMENT.

There shall be and hercby is created a Zoning Board of Adjustment consisting of five
members to be appointed by the Town Council. Members of the board shall serve a term
of three years, provided that upon initial appointment the terms of office may be
staggered. In filling vacancies created by resignation or other causes, a new member may
be appointed to fill the unexpired term of the member so vacating. Alternate members
shall be appointed for the same term, at the same time, and in the same manner as regular
members. Each alternate member while attending any regular or special meeting of the
board and serving in the absence of any regular members shall have and may exercise all
the powers and duties of a regular member. Members shall serve without pay but may be
reimbursed for any expenses incurred while representing the Board of Adjustment.

§ 92.081 ALTERNATE MEMBERS.
The Town Council shall appoint three alternate members to serve on the Board of

Adjustment in the absence, for any cause, of any regular member. Such alternate
members shall be appointed for three year terms. Such alternate members while

A




Page 4- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

attending any regular or special meeting of the board and serving in the absence of any
regular member, shall have and exercise all the powers and duties of such regular
member so absent. The alternate members shall be subject to the provisions of § 92.082.

§ 92.082 RULES OF CONDUCT.

(A)

(B)

(©)

™)

(E)

(¥)

Members of the board may be removed by the Town Council for cause, including
violation of the rules stated below.

Faithful attendance at meetings of the board and conscientious performance of the
duties required of members of the board shall be considered a prerequisite to
continuing membership on the board.

O)

)
=
=

membepef—hﬂ—mamedaa%e—famﬂf&%—pﬁeﬁt—speuse%r—ehﬂd} A boald membel

shall not participate in or vote on any quasi-judicial matter in a manner that would
violate affected persons’ constitutional rights io an impartial decision maker.
Impermissible conflicts include, but are not limited to, 2 member having a fixed
opinion prior to hearing the matter that is not susceptible to change, undisclosed
ex parte communications a close familial, busmess, or other associational

matter.

No board member shall discuss any case with any parties thereto prior to the
hearing on that case; provided, however, that members may receive and/or seek
information pertaining to the case from the Zoning Administrator or any other
member of the board, its secretary or clerk prior to the hearing.

Members of the board shall not express individual opinions on the proper
judgment of any case prior to its determination on that case.

before the-board: When a member is aware of a potential conflict of interest, he

or she shall give notice to the chair at least 48 hours prior to the fime scheduled
for hearing such matter.

2%



Page 5- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

©

No board member shall vote on any matter that decides an application or appeal
unless he has attended the hearing on that application or appeal.

§ 92.083 GENERAL PROCEEDINGS.

(A)

D)

The board shall annually elect a ebairman chair and a vice ehairman chair from
among its regular members. The ehairman chair in turn shall appoint a seeretary
clerk, who may be an employee of the fown; or a mun101pa1 ofﬁcelwa—member—ef

The chairman-or-in-his-absence-the-vice ehairman chair, or any member acting as

chan and the cleik may administer oaths.—and-request-the-attendanee-of witnesses

witnesses gu_i compel the production gf evidence, E request issuance of a
subpoena, persoens with standing under N.C.G.S. 160A-393(d) may make a
written request to the chair explaining why it is necessary for certain witnesses or
evidence to be compelled. The chair shall issuc requested subpoenas he or she
determines to be relevant, reasonable in nature and scope, and not oppressive.
The chair shall rule on g_y motion to quash or modify a subpoena. Decisions

adjustment.

The board shall keep minutes of its proceedings, including the names of members
present and absent, a record of the vote on every question, or abstention from
voting, if any, together with records of its examinations and other official actions.

§ 92.084 MEETINGS.

(A)

B)

Board Meetings. The board shall hold regular monthly meetings at a specified
time and place. Special meetings of the board may be called at any time by the
ehairman chair or by request of three or more members of the board. At least 48
hours written notice of the time and place of meetings shall be given, by the
ehairman chair, to each member of the board. All board meetings are to be held in
accordance with G.S. Ch. 143, Art. 33C, commonly referred to as the Open
Meetings Act.

Cancellation of Meetings. Whenever there are no appeals, applications for
conditional uses or variances, or other business for the board, or whenever so
many members notify the seeretary cletk of inability to attend that a quorum will

24



Page 6- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

©

D)

not be available, the ehairman chair may dispense with a meeting by giving
written or oral notice to all members.

Quorum. A quorum shall consist of three members of the board, but the board

shall not pass upon any questions relating to an appeal—ﬁem—a—éec—ts}eﬂ—e&

determination-of the Zoning Administrator,—or-an application for a variance ex
eonditional-usepermit when there are less than four members present.

concurring vote of f0u1-ﬁfths of the board shall be necessary to grant a variance.
A majority of the members shall be required to decide all other issues before the
board, including any other quasi-judicial matter or an appeal made in the nature of
certiorari. Vacant positions on the board and members who are disqualified from
voting on a quasi-judicial matter shall not be considered members of the board for
calculation of the requisite majority if there are no gualified alternates available to
take the place of such members.

§ 92.085 POWERS AND DUTIES.

25



1 Meeting

.
1

2013 Regular Counc

?

inutes of the October 8

M

Page 7

. .
1 nnarﬂﬁc

LI~ = F S mA g B

anthaorra

uu_y [EARISNAWS W Y

1matmept—mass

F4 XUJ Uoriiivrin—1

the Baoasrd of Ad
tHC—DOara—oT

1oafinn

T |
uyru.tuuu.\_uz,

T Tﬂf'\n
Cpon

{13
LY

wonld
LAATAS YT

1LLJJ LA~ N

HILY Ol

af thic srhantan

. . s
At tho meavicioana
CH— oL POy e o

tormvrotatton
ottty

m
llll—\lll}

literal 1

7T LILWITE

A

{f\\
\~J

LA 17 3 7 R Ay vARYY FAN I A St

n haormeny wath the-npurnase and

Iy

e 1
Wil oo

XALL

TP
VO ITOICAS

T I LU\i oI Told

The reanasted

£43
S

ooy UT v

raclt of.the artiana of the
Tt

al_pipaiymatannoc nva gang the
aHCES—dr oot tIIc IO ouUIT

1
THC—ypooTar-eIrioinat

The onee

al
M7

tha
L= ¥ A

hla
| EASNT e

e ¥atalak]

PECTRY FPEN
pyar=ain~)

1]
VY Iir

L% 421

thhat
[awinnhy

h=akLakhannbiaal

T ronTT

the
I

1
el

heleELiEst a¥alel
VO IOchs

The
TG

Hdineo

Oy o Ui sy

Trac or ha

qtimiet
oot

1a1ad
Ets e~

. .
1abhharing
UoUT o ST ITUUTIINS,

noa_nt na

.

13

OOty

A nanconform

1% ITOTI

(er)
he=Y




Page 8- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

' . . .

. . . 4, .
AWa aaFala 1) ayd e SEYVIVEOYIVE Atala 41 .43 a¥en - -
waaw Ty = ¥ o wa v AL ! CH v CHEED) . = cene

The Board of Adjustment is empowered and shall have the responsibility to hear and
decide (1) appeals from decisions of administrative officials pursuant to § 92.086, below;
(2) applications for conditional use permits pursuant to § 92.045, et seq.. and (3)
applications for variances pursuant to § 92.087, below.

§ 92.086 APPEALS AND APPLICATIONS GENERAL REQUIREMENTS I'OR
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS AND DECISIONS

A quasi-judicial decision is a process that involves the finding of facts regarding a
specific application of an ordinance and the exercise of discretion when applying the

standards of the ordinance. Quasi-judicial decisions include decisions involving
variances, conditional use permits, and appeals of administrative determinations.

(A)  Procedure for Filing Appeals and Applications. No-appeal-shall-be-heard-by
he bhoard-ualess not i A rithin 20 dave after the ipterested-par

Bartic deciston-or-determination dmirsstrator: Beth
Notices of appeal shall be filed with the town clerk. Applications for conditional
use permits and applications for variances shall be filed with the Zoning
Administrator and processed in accordance with these regulations. swhe-shal-act
as—elerkfor the-beard intreceivingthisnetiee. All appeals and applications shall
be made upon the form specified for that purpose, and all information required on
the form shall be complete before an appeal or application shall be considered as
having been filed. ications-have-be ed-wi i

n 0
iy

a¥al 3 ] (31 - A
C o L v ) G vy




Page 9- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

(B)

©)

Notice of Hearing, Notice of hearings conducted pursuant to this section shall be

mailed fo the person or entity whose appeal or application is the subject of the

 hearing, to the owner of the property that is the subject of the hearing if the owner

did not initiate the hearing; to the owners of all parcels of land abutting the parcel
of land that is the subject of the hearing; and to any other persons entitled to

contrary, the Town may rely on the Rutherford County tax listing fo determine
owners of property entitled to mailed notice. The notice must be deposited in the
mail at least 10 days, but not more than 25 days, prior to the date of the hearing.
Within that same time period, the Town shall also prominently post a notice of the
hearing on the site that is the subject of the hearing or on an adjacent street or
highway right-of-way. In addition, notice of a hearing on an application for a
conditional use permit shall be posted at Town Hall and published in a newspaper

having general circulation in the Town within that same time period.

Hearings. The Board shall conduct a quasi-judicial hearing on the appeal or
application. It shall determine contested facts and make its decision within 45
days of the conclusion of hearing. The Board’s decision shall be based upon
competent, material, and substantial evidence in the record of the hearing. The
decision shall be reduced to writing and reflect the Board’s determination of
contested facts, if any, and their application to applicable standards. The written
decision shall be signed by the chair or other duly authorized member of the

Board, The decision of the Board shall be effective upon filing such decision

personal delivery, electronic mail, or by first-class mail to the applicant, property
owiler, any entity granted party status at the hearing, and to any person who has
submitted a written request for a copy, prior to the date the decision becomes
effective and shall certify that proper notice has been made.




I Meeting

i

2013 Regular Coune

b

inutes of the October 8

M

Page 10-

FaZh §7 .1

+

A

ahall

chall

TG T

he

cueh
[e=i=ry

The -cha

[N

EIVU ct

[Ribiesny

LT ra¥al
L= ¥ i

FoT

e Yt talatl
PorauULITIhy

o
L

I

P ViR T N LEN Y g E S rey ey

ey chall nrecant
ot proocrit

Preoro

1ent

orannl

inag the anmnenl

FerSonsS-epposeato- gttt thcappoearora
133 [=3 [=) i 1y

nnoad to orant

Paroenna.gn

I(r\\
N

E ottt alalha¥sd
OO posIitg

rahntinla
Tooortaly

o mroecont
o HGUATT

1

o]

.
1
IO

- e _nmerm
YYL1IX A tl\.l

L% 51

adac
AR =s = e]

F A v vy

B il

iz Y
7

.
2

hean

haac

ieh

wurh

4
dence
[ L g A ey ¥ L

the o1

QtE i era

chall

FHan

The cha

(D\
e/

TITNLY oI

AR YIS TY

OUTTrarrzie

[e2u(soyy

TITo oL RAIITTTrorT

.

oE o T

11 258 Aave framthet
CEARE (o geas YAV o i Y A

madeaith

dchall be
THE U UOTIoH T U TG vy N rrrr.r

N o tha hone

17
T OoToT ooy

A dee
+THIE

Tisnea

(1
7

9



Page 11- Minates of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

use-have-beennet:

(D)  Expiration of permits Authorizations. Unless otherwise specified, any order or
decision of the board in granting a variance or a conditional use permit shall
expire if a certificate of zoning compliance for such use is not obtained by the
applicant within six months from the date of the decision. See-also—Seetion

aFa ata \a¥a wafats A%l =Lk Ll at s W ataval
CHOC CH e - w . . v Cl i

§ 92.087 APPEALS

The Board of Adjustment shall hear and decide appeals of administrative officials
charged with enforcement of the Zoning Regulations contained in this Chapter 92 and
with the Subdivision Regulations contained in Chapter 91 of the Code of Ordinances of
the Town of Lake Lure in accordance with the provisions of this section.

(A)  The Town and any person who has standing under N.C.G.S. 160A-393(d) may
appeal a decision to the Board, An appeal is taken by filing a notice of appeal
with the Town Clerk. The notice of appeal shall state the grounds for the appeal.

decision, if different from the owner. The written notice shall be delivered by
personal delivery, electronic mail, or by first-class mail.

%0



Page 12- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

©

The owner or other party shall have 30 days from receipt of the written notice
within which to file an appeal. Any other person with standing to appeal shall

have 30 days from receipt from any source of actual or constructive notice of the
decision within which to file an appeal.

It shall be conclusively presumed that all persons with standing to appeal have
constructive notice of the decision from the date a sign containing the words
“7Zoning Decision” or “Subdivision Decision” in letters at least six inches high
and identifying the means to contact an official for information about the decision
is prominently posted on the property for at least 10 days. Any such posting shall
be the responsibility of the landowner or applicant. Verification of the posting
shall be provided to the official who made the decision.

The official who made the decision shall transmit to the Board all documents and
exhibits constituting the record upon which the action appealed from is taken.
The official shall also provide a copy of the record fo the appellant and to the
owner of the property that is the subject of the appeal if the appellant is not the
ownet.

An appeal of a notice of violation or other enforcement order stays enforcement
of the action appealed from unless the official who made the decision certifies to
the Board after notice of appeal has been filed that because of the facts stated in

an affidavit, a stay would cause imminent peril to life or property or because the
violation is transitory in nature, a stay would seriously interfere with enforcement
of the regulations. In that case, enforcement proceedings shall not be stayed
except by a restraining order, which may be granted by a court. If enforcement
proceedings are not stayed, the appellant may file with the official a request for an
expedited hearing of the appeal, and the Board shall meet to hear the appeal
within 15 days after such a request is filed. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
appeals of decisions granting a permit or otherwise affirming that a proposed use
of property is consistent with the regulations shall not stay further review of an
application for permits or permissions to use such property: in these situations the
appellant may request, and the Board may grant, a stay of a final decision of

permit applications or building permits affected by the issue being appealed.

Subject to the provisions of Paragraph (F). above, the Board shall hear the appeal
within 45 days of the date of filing such appeal, and shall render its decision
within a reasonable time thereafter.

The official who made the decision shall be present at the hearing as a witness.
The appellant shall not be limited at the hearing to matters stated in the notice of

appeal. If any party would be unduly prejudiced by the presentation of matters

3\




Page 13- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

0

not presented in the notice of appeal, the Board shall continue the hearing. The
Board may reverse or affirm. wholly or partly, or may modify the decision
appealed from and shall make any order, requirement, decision, or determination
that ought to be made. The Board shall have all powers of the official who made
the decision.

When hearing an appeal pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160A-400.9(e) ot any other appeal
in the nature of certiorari, the heating shall be based on the record below and the

scope of review shall be as provided in N.C.G.5 160A-393(k).

The parties to an appeal may agree o mediation or other forms of alternative
dispute resolution.

§ 92.088 VARIANCES

‘When unnecessary hardships would result from carrying out the strict letter of these

regulations, the board of adjustment shall vary such regulations upon a showing of all of

the following:
(a) Unnecessary hardship would result from the sirict application of the regulations.

1t shall not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no

The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as
location. size, or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances,

as well as hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the
neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance.

The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property
owner. The act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist
that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created

hardship, B o

The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the
regulations, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice achieved.
Substantial justice is not achieved when granting the variance would be injurious
to the neighborhood or to the general welfare,

In determining what constitutes an unnecessary hardship, the Board of Adjustment shall

be guided by the following:

32




Page 14- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

(@8] There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular
piece of property in question that are not applicable to other lands or structures in
the same district.

(2) Granting the variance requested will not confer upon the applicant any special
privileges thai are denied to other residents of the district in which the property is
located.

(3) A literal interpretation of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other residents of the district in which
the property is located.

(4) The requested variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or to the general
welfare,

(6) A nonconforming use of neighboring land, structures or buildings in the same
district, and permitted uses of land, structures or buildings in other districts, will
not be considered grounds for the issuance of a variance.

In granting any variance, the Board of Adjustment may prescribe appropriate conditions
and safeguards in conformity with this chapter, Violation of such conditions and
safeguards, when made a part of the terms under which the variance is granted, shall be
deemed a violation of this chapter and punishable under § 92.999.

[PORTION NOT HIGHLIGHTED TRANSFERRED FROM § 92.085.]
§ 92.089 FEES FOR VARIANCES, CONDITIONAL USES AND APPEALS.

The fee for a request for a variance, or conditional use, or for an appeal to the Board of
Adjustment shall be determined by resolution of the Town Council and shall be payable
to the town.

§ 92.090 APREALS FROM JUDICIAL REVIEW OF DECISIONS OF THE BOARD
OF ADJUSTMENT.

d-at A d o ) A Q0

of the-General Statutes Decisions of the Board of Adjustment shall be subject fo review
by the superior court by proceedings in the nature of certiorari pursuant to N.C.G.S.
160A-393. A petition for review shall be filed with the clerk of superior court by the later
of 30 days after the decision is effective or after a written copy thereof is given in

33




Page 15- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

accordance with § 92.086(C), above When first- class mail is used to deliver notice,

[ADDITIONS TO TEXT ARE UNDERLINED; DELETIONS ARE STRUCK-FHROYGH ]

SECTION THREE. Paragraph (C) of § 92.046 of the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Lake
Lure, concerning the hearing for a conditional use permit application, is hereby amended as
follows:

(C)  Hearing. Upon receipt of a complete application for a conditional use permit, the
Zoning Administrator shall assign the application a hearing before the Board of

Adjustment and-givenetice-as-required by law. Hearing shall be quasi-judicial

and shall be notlced and conducted in accmdance w1th the DIOVISIOHS of § 92.086,

&ttem%y— A dec1810n by the Boald of Adjustment shall be made w1thm 3§{laysr
Fhe35-daysshall beginon 45 days of the date the hearing ends.

[ADDITIONS TO TEXT ARE UNDERLINED; DELETIONS ARE STRUCK-THROUGH |

SECTION FOUR. Paragraph (A) of § 92.061 of the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Lake
Lure, entitled “Duties of the Zoning Administrator”, is hereby amended as follows:

(A)  Duties of Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator shall issue certificates
of zoning compliance and certificates of occupancy as and shall perform such

othel dutles as are p1escubed herein. —Ilhe—Zeﬁmg—Aémﬂ%sﬂa{ershal%se%as

Administrator shall be the person principally responsible for the administration
and enforcement of this chapter and is authorized to issue notices of violation and
citations in accordance with § 92.999, below.

SECTION FIVE. Paragraph (F) of § 92.046 of the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Lake
Lure, concerning the written ruling for a conditional use permit application, is hereby repealed.

SECTION FIVE. In administering this Ordinance, the Town shall have all the remedies and

enforcement powers contained in Article 13 of the Zoning Regulations, as supplemented herein,
and as provided by the General Statuies.

34



Page 16- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

SECTION SIX. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION SEVEN. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of
this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed severable and such holding shall not affect the validity
of the remaining portions hereof.

SECTION EIGHT. The enactment of this ordinance shall in no way affect the running of any
amortization provisions or enforcement actions, or otherwise cure any existing zoning violations.

SECTION NINE. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its enactment.

Adopted this 8th day of October, 2013

PUBLIC FORUM |

Mayor Pro Tem John Moore invited the audience to speak on any non-agenda items
and/or consent agenda topics.

Gary McCall of 420 Boys Camp Road stressed the importance of notifying neighbors if a
vacation rental is being considered for approval in a residential area.

Mayor Pro Tem John Moore invited Barbara Searcy to speak since she had signed up to
speak during public forum, but Ms. Searcy stated that she did not wish to speak during public
forum.

| STAFF REPORTS |

Town Manager Chris Braund presented the town manager’s report dated October 8,
2013. (Copy of the town manager’s report is attached.)

]I COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS & COMMENTS B

Commissioner Diane Barrett reported the activities of the Parks and Recreation Board.
Commissioner John Moore reported the activities of the Zoning and Planning Board.
Commissioner Mary Ann Silvey reported the activities of the Lake Lure ABC Board and

the Lake Advisory Board and stated that the Lake Advisory Board voted to move the location of
their regular monthly meetings from the lake operations buildings to town hall.

25




Page 17- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

Commissioner Silvey also reported the activities of the Take Lure Classical Academy
School Board and asked that council consider authorizing the town manager to add a $400,000
line item to the capital improvement plan in order to seek funding for the creation of the water
and sewer infrastructure in the Island Creek Road area and proposed that Lake Lure Classical
Academy provide engincering and design work for the project, Commissioner Silvey explained
that extending water and sewer to the site of the future school would provide income from the
school and adjacent property. Ms. Silvey further explained that the town can explore state
funding options for the potential Island Creek sewer project that the school is not allowed to
pursue. Ms. Silvey suggested that the project become a top priority due to the time sensitivity of
the school construction project.

Commissioner Bob Cameron reported the activities of the Lake Lure Board of
Adjustment/Lake Structures Appeal Board.

CONSENT AGENDA |

Mayor Pro Tem John Moore presented the consent agenda and asked if any items should
be removed before calling for action.

Commissioner Bob Cameron made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented.
Commissioner Diane Barrett seconded the motion and the vote of approval was unanimous.
Therefore, the consent agenda incorporating the following items was unanimously approved and
adopted:

a. Minutes of the September 10, 2013 (regular meeting);
b. Resolution No. 13-10-08 authorizing the financing of police vehicles
RESOLUTION NO. 13-10-08

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF TOWN OF LAKE LURE,
NORTH CAROLINA, APPROVING FINANCING OF POLICE VEHICLES

WHEREAS, The Town of Lake Lure (“Town”) has previously determined to
undertake a project for the financing of two (2) new police vehicles (the “Project™), and
the finance officer has now presented a proposal for the financing of such Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE I'T RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL, TOWN OF
LAKE LURE, NORTH CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Town hereby determines to finance the Project through Branch
Banking and Trust Company (“BB&T”), in accordance with the
proposal dated September 26, 2013. The Amount financed shall not

30



Page 18- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

exceed $56,000.00, the annual interest rate (in the absence of default or
change in tax status) shall not exceed 2.12% and the financing term
shall not exceed three (3) years from closing,

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the
financing (the “Financing Documents™) shall be consistent with the
foregoing ferms. All officers and employees of the Town are hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver any Financing
Documents, and to take all such further action as they may consider
necessary or desirable, to carry out the financing of the Project as
contemplated by the proposal and this resolution.

3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed
copies of the Financing Documents until conditions for the delivery of
the Financing Documents have been completed to such officer’s
satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to approve changes to
any Financing Documents previously signed by Town officers or
employees, provided that such changes shall not substantially alter the
intent of such documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the
forms executed by such officers. The Financing Documents shall be in
such final forms as the Finance Officer shall approve, with the Finance
Officer’s release of any Financing Document for delivery constituting
conclusive evidence of such officer’s final approval of the Document’s
final form.

4. The Town shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or
omission of which shall cause its interest payments on this financing to
be includable in the gross income for federal income tax purposes of
the registered owners of the interest payment obligations. The Town
hereby designates its obligations to make principal and interest
payments under the Financing Documents as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations™ for the purpose of Internal Revenue Code Section 265(b)

&)

5. The Town intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a
declaration of the Town’s official intent to reimburse expenditures for
the project that is to be financed from the proceeds of the BB&T
financing described above. The Town intends that funds that have
been advanced, or that may be advanced, from the Town’s general fund
or any other Town fund related to the project, for project costs may be
reimbursed. From financing proceeds.

6. All prior actions of Town officers in furtherance of the purposes of this
resolution are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. All other




Page 19- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

resolutions (or parts thereof) in conflict with this resolution are hereby
repealed, to the extent of the conflict. This resolution shall take effect
immediately.

c. a request submitted by the Hickory Nut Gorge Chamber to suspend the alcohol
ordinance to allow serving of beer and wine at a business leaders dinner to be held
in the Community Hall in October;

d. a request to present a potential sign regulations amendments to the Zoning and
Planning Board for review; and

e, the following budget amendment concerning electric connections in front of the
arcade building and along Pool Creel:

Revenue Appropriation

General Fund
Transfer from Capital Reserve $4,720.00
Public Works- R&M Grounds $4,720.00

Capital Improvement Reserve Fund
Transfer to General Fund $4,720.00

End of Consent Agenda.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

a. OTHER UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no other unfinished business.

NEW BUSINESS:

a. BOARD APPOINTMENT - BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT/LAKE STRUCTURE
APPEALS BOARD

Board of Adjustment/Lake Structure Appeals Board Chairman Stephen Webber
suggested that two of the alternate board members be promoted to regular members and asked
that council consider only appeinting members who own property or live in town.




Page 20- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

Barbara Searcy of 211 Haveaner’s also asked that council not appoint a board who does
not own property or live in town.

Council members voted by written ballot.

Town Manager Chris Braund announced the following results:

Melvin Owensby and Michael Gray were appointed to fill the remainder of Vicki Smith
and Betty Johnson’s regular positions on the Board of Adjustment/Lake Structure Appeals Board

with terms expiring December 31, 2014.

Roger Jolly and David Butts were appointed to fill the remainder of Melvin Owensby and
Michael Gray’s alternate positions with terms expiring December 31, 2014,

NEW BUSINESS:

b. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE TOWN FEE SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR
2013-2014

Town Manager Chris Braund gave an overview of a proposed fee schedule for the Town
of Lake Lure for fiscal year 2013-2014, including a 9% increase in water rates as assumed in the
fiscal year budget approved earlier in 20013.

Mayor Pro Tem John Moore proposed that the water rates remain the same as they were
in fiscal year 2012-2013.

Town Manager Chris Braund explained why the increase is proposed and stated that if
council chooses not to increase water rates for fiscal year 2013-2014 the budget will need to be
amended.

After discussion, Commissioner John Moore made a motion to approve the proposed fee
schedule as presented with the exception of the water rates, which will remain the same and be
reconsidered at a later date. Commissioner Diane Barrett seconded the motion. Commissioner
John Moore, Commissioner Diane Barrett, and Commissioner Bob Cameron voted in favor of
the motion. Commissioner Mary Ann Silvery opposed. The motion carried with a vote of three to
one in favor. (A copy of the fee schedule is attached.)

NEW BUSINESS:

¢. GATEWAY PROPERTY REPORT: FINDINGS & RECOMMENDATIONS

A




Page 21- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

Community Development Director Shannon Baldwin provided council members a
handout with a report of findings concerning use of the gateway property (104/106 Boys Camp
Road) and gave an overview of a memo from Charlie Ellis outlining proposals for the property
prepared by the gateway property task force.

After discussion, Commissioner John Moore made a motion to ask the Zoning and
Planning Board to review the proposals and make a recommendation to town council concerning
use of the property at 104/106 Boys Camp Road. Commissioner Bob Cameron seconded the
motion and the vote of approval was unanimous.

NEW BUSINESS:

i
d. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A CORRECTION OF THE LAKE LURE CLASSICAL

ACADEMY DEED TO CORRECT THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO CONFORM TO A
NEW SURVEY

Community Development Director Shannon Baldwin and Attorney Chris Callahan gave
an overview of the proposed deed of correction for Lake Lure Classical Academy.

After discussion, Commissioner Diane Barrett made a motion to approve the deed.
Commissioner Mary Ann Silvey seconded the motion and the vote of approval was unanimous.

NEW BUSINESS:

f. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A PROPOSAL CONCERNING ENGINEERING
SERVICES TO ASSESS AND MODERNIZE THE SEWER ORDINANCE

Chris gave an overview of a proposal for engineering services to assess and modernize
the town sewer ordinance (Chapter 51) and analyze sewer rates/revenues against operating costs
and capital improvement investment needs as outlined in his memo to town council dated
October 4, 2013 and in a proposal submitted by Jeffrey Brown, President of Brown Consultants.

Mr. Bruand requested that $13,000 of the town’s capital improvement funds be used to
complete the proposed setvices.

After discussion, Commissioner Bob made a motion to accept the proposal and move

~ $13,000 from the capital improvement fund to the sewer fund for the project. Commissioner

Mary Ann Silvey seconded the motion and the vote of approval was unanimous.

ADJOURN THE MEETING

With no further items of discussion, Commissioner Bob Cameron made a motion to




Page 22- Minutes of the October 8, 2013 Regular Council Meeting

adjourn the meeting at 8:35p.m. Commissioner Mary Ann Silvey seconded the motion and the
vote of approval was unanimous.

ATTEST:

Andrea H. Calvert Mayor Bob Keith
Town Clerk



Agenda Item: 12b

4)



= Town of

wee.

est. 1927 North Carolina

Zoning and Planning Board

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor & Town Council
FROM: Thomas McKay, Chair
Cé Chris Braund, Town Manager

SUBJECT: Proposed Concession Agreement Review

DATE: November 4, 2013

At its October 15, 2013 meeting, the Zoning and Planning Board discussed the Lake Lure Tours
concession agreement and then evaluated the projects they believe would enhance the Town Center. The
Board expressed support for giving a 10 year contract to Lake Lure Tours if the Town could get nice,
relevant improvements for the Town Center in return. Below are the improvements in a prioritized order
based on the votes of the Zoning and Planning Board. Although there were a few ties, the Morse Park
Bridge ranked first. This information is being forwarded to you for consideration as the negotiations
move forward.

Morse Park Bridge

Open and repurpose picnic area east of Pool Creek
New signage at Beach using new branding
Open Beach during off-season

New entrance gate at Beach

Trail system/Pedestrian circulation

Day slips (6-8 boats)

Remove old Pool Creek Bridge

Renovate public restrooms

Boardwalk improvements

Picnic shelter

SR S5 Gt b RS R el B e

Please know the Town Center Master Plan was a wonderful process for the Town and it caused us to see
great opportunities for capital improvements. The Board felt that Town Council, Mr. Braund, and staff
should make the decisions on the business points while the Zoning and Planning Board should remain
focused on the planning aspects of the agreement and how various capital projects would improve public
spaces. We certainly appreciate the opportunity to serve in this capacity in keeping with your request.

P. O. Box 255, Lake Lure, NC 28746 <% Phone 828-625-9983, Ext, 129, Fax 828-625-8371 45



Agenda Item: 14a

44




Lake Lure Properties, LLC
The 1927 Lake Lure Inn and Spa
625 Oak Street
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043

The Town of Lake Lure . September 16, 2013
Mr. Chris Braund, Town Manager {by e-mail)

Lake Lure Town Hall

U.S. 64 / 74 — Memorial Highway

Lake Lure, NC 28746

Request for Town Council approval of 2015 advance booking of The Lake Lure
Town Pavilion {Gazebo) by The 1927 Lake Lure Inn and Spa

Lake Lure Properties, LLC {The 1927 Lake Lure Inn and Spa) wishes to reserve the Town Gazebo for the
following dates in 2015:

2015 Gazebo Date Requests
SATURDAYS:
May: 2,19, 16, 23,30
June; 6,13, 20, 27
August: 1, 8, 15, 22, 29
September: 5,12, 19, 26
Qctober: 3,10, 17, 24
November: 7, 14

SUNDAYS:

May: 24 (Memorial Day Weekend)
September: 6 {Labor Day Weekend)
October: 11 (Columbus Day Weekend)

PAYMENT REQUEST
Lake Lure Properties, LLC requests that the Lake Lure Town Council approve a term of sale for
payment of the rental fees at the 2014 rate of $500 for these 2015 Gazebo use dates as follows:
e 50% of the total rents on the requested above dates to be paid by June 30, 2014
¢ Remaining 50% of the total rents of the above dates to be paid by January 30, 2015.

Any Additional Gazebo dates requested by Lake Lure Properties, LLC outside of the pre-
reserved dates above, will be paid in full at the time of contract payment receipt from the Inn’s

client for their respective date.

If multiple events are held on the same day, the Inn will remit to the town an additional event
fee (the 2014 gazebo rental rate).

45




Rationale:

The Inn commits a large amount of time and revenue towards marketing the Lake Lure Gazebo at
Wedding Festivals, online, through direct emails to brides, during facility tours, etc.

In 2012, the Town’s Gazebo rentals doubled from 2009 due to the Inn's marketing strategy. There were
27 Inn Gazebo weddings in 2008, and 52 tnn Gazebo weddings in 2012. In 2013, there were 47 Inn
Gazeho weddings. Below is arrayed the time spent by the Inn marketing the Gazebo as weli as the
number of quality tourists that have gained interest in the Gazebo due to the Inn’s efforts:

INTERESTED PARTIES
+ 3,000-5,000 online-registered brides per year through the Inn's website.
o 2012 saw over 6,500 registered bride’s on the Inn’s website
o 2013 has seen 8,660 registered, interested brides, to date

e 6,000 potential bride-tourists at Inn’s wedding festivals introduced to Lake Lure Gazebo.

e Approximately 25,000 wedding guests (quality tourists) attended the Inn’s gazebo ceremonies
and receptions from 2009-2013, and rented rooms/cabins, ate meals at local restaurants,
shopped in local establishments, etc.

* 300-350 Inn property tours per year, all including marketing of the Town’s Gazebo and the Inn’s
reception spaces.

MARKETING TIME:
The Inn spends approximately 5,000 hours per year, marketing the Gazebo and the Inn Weddings.
* An average of 6 tours per week x 52 weeks = 312 tours, each an hour long
s  Wedding festivals: prep day + festival = 24 hours x 5 festivals = 120 hours for wedding festivals
+ lLabor Hours
o 6,000 registered users x 3 emall responses each = 18,000 emails: 3,000 hours
o Individual emails = 35 hours per week x 52 weeks: 1,820 hours

Weddings account for a large portion of the quality tourists’ dollars spent with Lake Lure businesses.
Revenue to the local businesses from Inn brides (per Gazebo Wedding, based on 100 guests):

+ 100 room nights X area average 5100/night = $10,000

s  Offsite meals at $10 per meal x 2 meals x 150 persons = $3,000

» Approximately 150 quality wedding tourists frequenting area attractions during each visit=$?

The Inn has proven this pre-booking marketing strategy to be a successful, working model to drive

business to the Hickory Nut Gorge and local businesses, and increasing revenues for business members
of the Gorge, both in the High Season {May — October), and Low Season {November — April).

Thank you for your consideration in this matter,

LAKE LURE PROPERTIES, LiL.C
The 1927 Lake Lure Inn and Spa

George Wittmer, Managing Member
‘Patrick Bryant, Events and Catering Department Manager, Hotel Representative



Agenda Item: 14b

47



Office of the Town Manager

TO: Mayor and Commissioners

FROM: Chris Braund &

DATE: October 14, 2013

RE: ATM Lease - State Employees Credit Union (SECU)

Earlier this year, the SECU notified us that they would not be renewing their lease with the town for the space
where the ATM sits (between the Welcome Center and the Marina). They did not have enough transaction
volume to justify the rental fee to the fown and the costs of operating and servicing the machine. Although not
many locals have accounts with the SECU, the ATM is open to the public and they have no transaction fees.

We were able to get them to extend our lease for 6 months without rent to see if the transaction volume would
increase. Tt hasn’t, but SECU has agreed to continue suppotting the machine in place “until the ATM must be
removed due to low transactions”.

At this time, this is the only bank service we’ve been able to retain or attract.

[ recommend the town council approve the attached Letter of Agreement,

Ce: Sam Karr, Finance Director
Shannon Baldwin, Community Development Director
Wyn Hardy, Chamber of Commerce
George Wittmer, Lake Lure Properties
Adrienne Wallace, Lake Lure Welcome Cenfer




Statc Employees' Credit Union®
M Facilities Services

Qctober 4, 2013

TOWN OF LAKE LURE

Alin: Chris Braun, Town Manager
PO BOX 265

LAKE LURE, NC 28746-0255

RE: ATM B8RU -~ Lake Lure — Town Hall Parking Lot
2" Letter of Agreement

Dear Mr. Braun:

Per your conversation with Chery Smith, please accept this Letter of Agreement as an addendum to the
Lease hetween State Employees' Credit Union and Town of Lake Lure, dated March 22, 2012 and 1
Letter of Agreement dated February 15, 2013 fo include:

Options: Month-to-Month beginning November 1, 2013, to be in addition to
paragraph # 12 in lease along with rental payment description below. Will
remain Month-to-Month until the ATM must be removed due to low

transactions.

Rental Paymenit: = Monthly rental wilt be $0.00 (Rent Free) per month durmg the Iease N
extension period as stated above.

Terms; and conditions of the original lease shall apply, excepf for the terms listed above.

Please have these two Criginals signed, keep one for your records and return one for our files.
Thank you.

Sincerely,

Peggy
Facilities Admin IStI’aUOI‘I

Ce: Kim Hollifield, SVP - # 74 Forest City
Chery Smith, VP - # 192 Rutherfordton

AGCEPTED: | |
LESSOR: Townof LakeLure  TENANT: State E}?'pioyees; Credit Union
Mayor Dot Hintor, SVP Facilities Services
DATE: * pate: o[ d 1 %
@ 1000 Wade Avente g Post Office Box 26807 «sagp Raleigh, NC 216116807 tgge 919 8563340 oneggh Foc 919 7436090

wwiwnesecu.org

Recyclad
Papos “Kqual EmploymentyAffivmative Action Fmployer, M/E" E ! q






